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OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY

The governing body present their consolidated annual repart together with the financial staterments
and auditor's report for Kingston Maurward College for the year ended 31 July 2021

Legal Status

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpose of
conducting Kingston Maurward College. The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of the
Charities Act 2011,

The College is based one mile east of Dorchester centred around the Grade | listed Kingston
Maurward House and includes elassical Grade II* listed gardens and parkland. The Caollege offers a
wide range of full and part time courses, and specialises in land-based and related subjects. As part
of its educational role, the Callege runs a 750 acre mixed farm, equestrian centre and countryside
visitor altractions, including a formal garden and animal park. The College has opened an Estate
shop supporting intemships for students with learning disabilities and additional catering outlets. The
Georgian House and grounds are hired out for educational conferences, funclions, events and
weddings.

Mission, Vislon, Strategy and Objectives

The College’s mission statement, which was first adopted in July 2017 as part of its four-year strategic
plan is:

“Kingston Maurward is a specialist provider serving the needs of land-based and allied
industries in Dorset and the South West. Our students will be inspired to achieve their
petential in a challenging but caring environment, enjoying exciting learning and high quality
facilities within a vibrant commercial rural estate.”

The strategic plan for the period 2017/18 to 2020v21 includes property and financial plans against
which the College's performance is monitored,

The College's values are that we will;

* [nspire
#= Challenge
« Care

The College's key strateqgic theames are;

= People
o Ve are inspired by the commitment and abilities of our staff and students within an
inspiring environmant, which brings out the best in everyone.
o We challenge ourselves and our students every day to be the very best that they can
be, striving for excellence.
o We are a mutually supportive community working logether and caring for each other to
deliver something that is far greater than the sum of the parts.

+ Learning
o Students will becorne independent learmners through Inspirational teaching, mativated o
achieve beyond their expectations.
o The College provides a challenging learning environment designed to maximise the
achievement of all individuals, regardiess of starting point,

2



Kingston Maurward College
Board Report

For the

0

year ended 31 July 2021

Students are supported and nurtured in @ caring environment. Within this environment
they are given the tools to become more resilient.

+ Partnership

o

o

o

= Fina

The College is at the hub of the Dorset community, providing an Inspirational centre for
knowledge exchange and new business generation.

The College challenges iself and its partners to meet the needs of the South West rural
agenda, matching curriculum development o ndustry reids,

A good reputation is hard wan and easily lost. The College cares passionately about
delivaring an outstanding experience to all its visitars and industry partners.

ncial Resilience

In order to achieve is mission as a high quality specialist provider the underlying financial
stability and financial sustainability are key to the College. As part of the Strategic Plan 2017-

2021,

]
o
L
o

the College set the following financial resilience objectives:

To ensure continued financial health rating of at least good,

To meet the terms of the bank covenants in place.

To ensure the College meets criteria defined by the Dorset Area Review 2016117,
To further diversify the College revenue streams in order to maximise return an the
estate and hedge against unpredictable events.

¢ Estate Development

1 *]
L ]
o

Leaming resources need to meet the needs of modern educational practice.

Planning for commercial bulldings to enable further growth in revenues and margin,
Planning for further capital developments on the estate within a framework sensitive Lo,
and maximising, the heritage value of the estate.

The College recognises there has been slippage in some aspects of the objectives. In particular,
significant events oulside the contral of the College may impact on its ability 1o achieve or maintain
some specific objectives. This has been the case with Covid-19 and is properly reflected in the
College Risk Management plan.

Financial objectives

Performance against financial resiflience objectives is summarised as follows:
» Financial health rating of at least '‘Good’ — not achieved during 2020-2021 academic year (as a
result loss of income due to Covid-19 and the £850k ESFA apprenticeship income clawback)

« Meet requiraments of bank covenants — not achieved during 2020-21(as a result loss of
income due o Covid-18)

«  Meel Darsel Area Review critera

o

Operating surplus of 3% or greater by 2020 — not achieved due to negative operating
surplus as a result of loss of income due 1o lockdown and the apprenticeship income
clawback accrual,

Borrowing as a % of Income at less than 40% - achieved (29.8%).

Staff Costs as a % of turnover below 65% — achieved (B3.1%).

Current ratio greater than 1 - not achieved. The current ratio for 2020021 was 0.81 (0.63
20195200,
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= To lurther diversify the College revenue sireams io hedge against further unpredictable
events, While investment has been made in non-academic revenue streams, the income from
Inese has been stalled by the on-set of Covid-19 and the resulling lockdowns, We expect
these income areas to show substanfial improvement post pandemic.,

Due to continued restrictions caused by Covid-19 the College was forced to close down several
revanua generating areas during the financial year in question, and also had resfrictions on scale and
scope of events, such as weddings, due to COVID legislation. The College has lost much of its
commercial income since March 2020 due to government restrictions on frade and this amounts 1o a
significant deficit on budgeted income. One or two small wedding ceremaonies have taken place
during this period but these have not had an impact on the finances. Commercial activities resumed
post lockdown in Apil 2021,

Curriculum defivery resumed face to face from September 2020 but was intefrupled again with the
sacond lockdown in Novemnber 2020 when online remote delivery resumed

With the challenges presented by unknown and rapidly changing directives from the DIE, the College
performed well in its duty to students’ education, providing a hybrid curriculum from September 2020
and hen additional remote delivery during various lockdown periods, as well as supplementad
student support and walfare with the addition of evening support via Zoom and Teams. Student
retention for the year increased from 82.9% the preceding year to B8%, demonstrating the
effectivenass of this suppart.

Resources
The College has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives.

The College employs 175 staff (expressed as full ime equivalents), of which 62 are emplayed as
teaching staff and 113 are employed in support functions and activities relating to the College’s
commarcial activities,

The College enrolled approximately 727 full time students with an increase of 8.18% in 16-10 ('sixth
form’) age students, exceading the KPI of 5%. The College’s student population incudes 16-to-19
year oid students, apprentices, higher education students and over 19 adult learners.,

The Group has (£6,586k) of net liabilities (2019/20 (£4,848k)). This negative position is partly due to
an increase in defined benefit cbligations and parlly due to the E850k ESFA clawback. This includes
£12,0809k pension liahility (201920 £11,501k) an increase of £598K in the actuarial valuation.

Tangible resources inciude the main College estate comprising of 750 acres, and an extensive range
of buildings providing teaching and learning resources, practical workshops, offices. conference
facilities, student accommedation and farm buildings. The value of the Estate as presented in these
financial statements is not representative of its true market value, as the College did not choose to
revalue as at 1 August 2014 under the provisions of FRS 102,

The Cellege has a good and developing reputation locally, regionally and nationally. Maintaining a
quality brand i essential for the College's success al altracting students and external relationghips.
The College Principal is on the Board of the Dorset Local Enterprise Partnership and is a key player in
driving the rural agenda for the whaole of the South West Region, where he also sits as Chair of Dorset
Careers Hub Steering Group, Chair of the Dorset Local Nature Parinership and Member of Darset
ADNB board, as well as roles across the region such as the Great South Weast LEP Steering Group.
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Stakeholders

The College has many stakeholders including:

Currant, fulure and past students;
Staff and their trade unions;
The Education Skills and Funding Agency, the Office for Students and other professional bodies
in the sectors where it works;
# The employers if works with;
Partner schools and universities; the wider college community, and
The local borough council, combined authority and Local Enterprise Partnership

Public Benefit

Kingston Maurward College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is
regulated by the Secretary of State for Education. The members of the Governing Body, whao arne
trustees of the charity, are disclosed on page 1. In seiting and reviewing the College's strategic
objectives, the Governing Body has had due regard for the Charity Commission's guidance on public
benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of education.

In delivering its missson, the College provides identifiable public benefits through the advancement of
education to around 1,000 students, including 130 with high needs. The College provides courses
without charge 1o young people, to those who are unemployed and adults taking English and maths
courses. The Caollege adjusts its courses to meet the needs of local employers and provides training
to ower 120 apprentices. The College is committed to providing information, advice and guidance to
students i enrols and o finding suitable courses for as many students as possible regardless of their
educational background.

DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE

The College, along with mast colleges in the country and especially the land-based sector, had a
difficult year. This was primarily due io the impact of Covid-19 and it affected mainly the commercial
and other income sireams. The detail of the finance results is shown in the financial statements and
is summarised below.

Financial Resulls

The College has significant reliance on the education sector funding bodies for its principal funding
source, largely from recurrent grants. In 2020021 the funding bodies provided 55% (2019720 62%) of
the College Group's total income.

The group was heavily impacted by COVID-19 and this lead to the generation of a deficit {before a
gain on disposal of assets) of (£2,252k) in the year (201220 deficit of (£1,419k]},

Included within the College Group's net labilities of (£6,586k) are cash balances of £1,008k (2018920
(E121K)).

The College has experienced a reduction in its reserves position as at 31 July 2021 compared with 31
July 2020, This position follows an actuarial valuation resulting in a negative impact of (E502K).

Tangible fixed assets held at the year-end amounted to £15 819k split between land £14, 508k, assets
in course of canstruction E442k and equipment purchased of £779k.
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The college secured two large capital grants in year, one from Salix (E2.1m for a ground source heat
pump solution) and the other from the Dorsel Local Enterprise Partnership (£3.5m for the building of a
University Centre and Rural Hub). Capital grants fully funded the prajects hence no malched funding
was required. The completion date for bath projects was summer 2022,

Covid-19

The impacts of Covid-19 are significant on the College's financial infrastructure and performance, Due
o government restrictions on trade, the commercial areas of the college have had 1o largely close,
and many staff placed en furlough and not funded from the ESFA funds. This however, only mitigated
some of the financial fixed costs and therefore the overall effect of the pandemic, as for many
businesses has been significantly negative in the 2020/21 financial year. As a result, in the Autumn
Term of 2020 the College underiook a roct and branch review of structures, enabling both restructure
and cost mitigations and also redundancies. These impacts mitigated but did not completely alleviate
the harm to budget income vs expenditure.

The pandemic had a negative impact on the majority of commercial activities of the Callege.

The Gardens and Animal Park closed to visitors in March 2020, as well as the café and Playbam
situated within the park. With the exception of the Playbam, these functions all reapened in April
2021, Weddings and conferences ceased in March 2020 with weddings commencing again in June
2021,

The pandemic and lockdown had a significant impact on delivery and uptake of Adult Education
courses, with courses ceasing during lockdown.

The impact of loss of income due to lockdown is estimated at E600k, which is a substantial amount for
tha college. This has had a negative impact on 202021 EBITDA, resarves, and financial health

grade.
Treasury policies and objectives

Treasury management is the management of the College's cash flows, its banking, money market and
capital market transaclions; the effective control of risks asseclated with those activities; and the pursuit
of oplimum performance consistent with those risks. The College has a separate treasury management
policy in place.

Short term berrowing for lemparary revenue purposes is authorised by the Accounting Officer. All other
berrowing requires the authorsation of the Corporation and shall comply with the requirements of the
Financial Mermarandurm.

Cash flow and lguidity

The net cash inflow from operating activities was £189k (2019/20 outflow £347k),

The size of the Collage’s fotal borrowing and its approach to interest rates has been calculated to ensure
a reasonable cushion betwean the total cost of servicing debt and operating cashfiow,
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Developments

Despite significantly difficult trading condilions, the College has been extremely successiul in working
with the Dorset Local Enterprise Partnership, enabling additional capital grants 1o be successhully bid
for, and applied to the estate. The value of these was in excess of E111k, enabling a full
refurbishment of the kitchen and catering facility (thus reducing both H&S risks and futureproofing), a
new indoor bouldering facility to support the growth of 16-19 student numbers, additional IT
infrastructure to support progression and support of online and blended learning, and investment in
the roads and pathway infrastructure across the estate. Two major capital projects started in year,
The first was a £3.5m University Centre and Rural Hub which was fully grant funded through a Dorset
Local Enterprise grant. The project complated in August 2022, The second was a £2.1m project o
implement a ground source heat pump sclution for a proportion of the college estate. This was fully
grant funded throwgh a Salix grant the project completed in July 2022,

The College has a fully approved Estate Master Plan, working closely with the Local Autharity so that
its plans will be incorporated within the overall Local Plan which is currently in consultation.
Relationships with planners and statutory bodies such as Historic England are excellent.

Reserves

The group has accumulated negative income and expenditure reserves of (£10,875k) and cash
balances of £1m. The group wishes to continue to accumulate positive reserves and cash balances in
arder i create a contingency fund to meet future capilal requirements.

Sources of income

The group has significant reliance on the education sector funding bodies for its principal funding
source, largely from recurrent grants. In 202002021, ESFA provided 53% of the group’s total income.

Group companies

The College has one subsidiary company, Kingston Maurward Enterprises Limited, of which the
principal activity is organising conference events and management of Kingston Maurward Gardens
and Animal Park. Surpluses generated by KME Limited are transferred lo the College under dead of
covenant. In the current year, the deficit generated was £30k (201920 defictt £310).

FUTURE PROSPECTS
Future developments

In order to achieve an underlying position which Is better than break even, axcluding the impact of
FRS 102 pension costs, further cost efficiencies will need to be found with the real emphasis being on
the growth of commercial income as well as student number growth, It will always be a high prionty to
reach out for capital funding from the LEP and the DFE, although the current governmental review of
LEPs suggest future capital will primarily come from eentral govemnment as well as local authorifies.
2021122 is expected to be a difficult year, after which the College should start to reap the reward of its
careful strategic positioning.
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The College aims o increase confribution by continuing to implement efficiency opportunities across
the callege site. The College aims to reduce dependency on the Education and Skills Funding
Agency and will continue to develop a number of apportunities in relation to its commercial income.
This will include improving the profitability of its farm operations, developing the income generation
from the park and gardens, and further developing the use of its facilities for weddings and
conferences.

Financial plan

The college governors approved a financial plan in July 2021 which sets objectives for the pericd to
2022. The college aims to achieve a health rating of "Good' and maintain positive EBITDA in the yaar
to 31 July 2022, Neither of these objectives were achieved in 2022, The college aims to achieve a
health rating of "Requires Improvement” in 2023 with a positive EBITDA.

Cemmercial income is forecasted to increase next year, with the addition of a new cataring ouflet and
shop

Treasury policies and objectives

The College has freasury management arrangements in place to manage cash flows, banking
arrangements and the risks associated with those activities. All long term borrowing requires the
specific authorisation of the corporation.

The College increased borrowing in 2020/21 through securing a CBILS loan for £1.2m.  The College
censolidated beth of its Natwest loans and its Barclays boan in September 2022, This is explained
further in nate 18 to the accounts.

Reserves Policy

The College Reserves Policy seeks to increase cash resources to deliver a target of cash days of
thres months, current ratio in excess of 1, gearing ratio of less than 20% and performance ratio in
axcess of 4%, To date the College has not managed to altain the desired level of reserves.

The College currently holds no restricted resarves.

It s the Corporation's intention to increase reserves aver the life of the Sirategic Plan, through the
generation of annual operating surpluses.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The College has well developed sirategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk management
in all that it does. Risk management processes are designed lo protect its assets, reputation and
financial stability, The governing body has overall responsibility for risk management and ks approach
to managing risks and internal contrels is explained in the Statement of Corporate Governance,

The Risk Management Group undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks to which the College s
exposed, ientifying systems and procedures, including specific prevantable actions which should
mitigate any potential impact on the College. The internal controls are then implemented and are
reviewed annually for their effectiveness and progress against risk mitigation actions. In addition to
the annual review, the Risk Management Group will also consider any risks which may arise fram new
areas of work being undertaken by the College.

A risk register is maintained at the College level which s reviewed on a reqular basis by the Risk
Management Group and the Audit & Assurance Committee. The risk register identifies the key risks,
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the likelihood of those risks occurring, their polential impact on the College and the actions being
taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring system.

The main risk factors affecting the College are outlined below along with the action taken to minimise
thern. Mot all of the factors are within the College's contral. Other factors besides those listed below
may also adversely affect the College.

1. Financial Viability

In comman with all public sector crganisations the College s managing the financial impact of static
student funding levels over many years and although an increase of less than 5.0% has been
announced for 20121 this dogs not close the gap and there is nothing yet announced for subsequent
years. The relatively small size of the organisation puts additional pressure on the College in
responding to these challenges. In particular, management of the College’s cashflow is crucial in
ensuring the overall viability of the organisation is maintained, including delivering alt leasl a
satisfactory health rating and adhering to the bank covenants.

This risk is mifigated by:

Budgets sef and closety managed for all areas of activity,

Dietailed cash fliow managemant and forecasting,

Financial forecast sensitivity analysis;

Monthly financial reports to Corporation/Finance and Resources Committee;
Focus on developing profitable new income opportunities;

Increased focus on resource management across the College; and

Internal and external audit processes.

2. Safeguarding and Data Protection

The College has a good safeguarding and data protection record, however the type and range of
activities undertaken maan that this remains a significant area of focus for the organisation. In
addition, the nature and the extent of the campus and the diversity of our student profile particularly in
terms of age and vulnerability, present specific safeguarding issues. Implementation of the General
Data Protection Regulations {GDPR) in 2018 require that all personal data held by the College is
managed securely in accordance with this legislation,

This risk is mitigated by:

Safeguarding and Data Protection policies and procedures;

Appointmeant of a Data Pratection Officer

Safeguarding Officars hold appropriate qualifications;

Safeguarding Commities, which monitors best practice;

Training on Saleguarding and Data Protection for all stalf, reinforced on an annual basis,

All new staff having a DBS In place prior to commencaments and a numbser of key existing staff
having DBS checks camied outl every three years,

Qualified link governor who attends mest internal mestings;

Safeguarding included in the SAR and Annual Reports presented o Corporation;

Robust HR recruitment processes; and

Links maintained with external agencies such as the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board, Social
Sarvices and the Police.

- & & @

3. Student Recruitment and retention

A decline in student recruitment would impact on finances from the ESFA under the current funding
methodology as future allocations are based partly on historical student numbers.
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This risk is mitigated by;

A comprehensive marketing strategy including schools lialson and taster courses:
Applications monitoring and monthly raparting;

Employer Engagemant Stratagy;

Apprenticeship Growth Plan;

Regular management information system reports; and

Sanior management team review.

Other key risks include:

Failure fo maintain or improve commercial income:

Failure to maintain or improve on the Good OFTSED rating;

Failure lo maximise apprenticeship income;

Failure to maintain or improve the quality of teaching and leaming;

Failure to source capital funding for developing and maintaining the College estate.

Key risks associaled with Covid-19;
=  Lockdown of college
o Cessation of all commercial activities, loss of income
o Cessation of all adult education, loss of income
» Stall absence due to iliness
« Failure to facilitate open days due 1o lockdown

These risks are to some extent mitigated by:

Rigorous hygiene conirol

Implementation of government initiatives re pandemictinfectious diseases
Availability of on line learning if required

Staff and students taking lateral flow tests twice weakly

Key staff cover confingency plans

Facililate on line open events

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Hey performance indicalor Measure/Target | Actual for 2020021
_Student number targets (16-19) +5% +8.18%

Student achievement/progression B5% 75%

Operating surplus/EBITDA as % of income 2.25% -B%

Slaffl satisfaction (via survey) B5+ KA

Ofsted rating Good Good

The impact of lockdown is reflected in the operating surplus/EBITDA ratio being negative for 2020/21.

Student Achievements

As a specialist land-based provider the College has a good reputation across Dorset and surrounding
areas and many of its students travel significant distances to attend. The curriculum offered is
extensive in supporting land-based relaled aclivities and is constantly being reviewed in order fo mest

student needs better and ensure onward destinalions are positive and relevant.

The Callege has a breadth of provision with clear progression routes from Eniry level to Higher
Education. It provides a good range of vocational courses for sludents aged 16-18 and a variety of

10
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both part-time and full-time programmes for adult students in land-based and other sectors,
particularly Construction, Blacksmith and Welding, Sport, Unitormed Public Services and Outdoor
Adventure,

The College continues to deliver and develop higher education programmes in collaboration with the
Royal Agricultural University and Bournamouth University,

The College has a broad range of excellent partnerships and oulstanding relationships with local
employers which enables it to expand ils presence in the region.

It ks a sponsor of the Dorset Studio School (D5S), whose students make full use of the College estate
and facilities for specialist leaming, practical activity and exams alongside National Curriculum
activity. The school was graded as ‘Good' by Ofsted in its first inspection in September Z017 with the
Inspectors nating a key strength was the school’s use of the excellent resources and strong and
effective parinerships. Students altending DSS are predisposed to allend KMC and there is strong
coliaboration between the school and the College.

Partnership working with the Royal Veterinary College, and other relationships with, amangst others,
the National Farmers' Union (MFU), Dorset Police, Dorset Fire and Rescue, British Horse Society,
Buritish Show Jumping, Pets at Home, the Forestry Commission, Peter Green Leisure (PGL), the
Army, RAF, Royal Marines and the British Holiday and Home Park Association, ensure that
programme contenis meets the need of employers, Development of a partnership with Dorset County
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has expanded to include higher apprenticeships.

The College was graded "Good' by Ofsted in November 2014, with this grade being re-confirmed
fallowing Ofsted's short inspection in Ocleber 2017, Residential Care Standards were graded
Outstanding in May 2019,

Outcomes for students on vocational programmes are good, with headline achievement rates on most
16-18 Study Programmes, 19+ Adult Programmes and Apprenticeships at or above national and
specialist group averages. There are no significant achieverment gaps in terms of gender, disability or
ethnicity. Progression is good for those completing their study programmes.  Students are well
prepared for moving on o their next destination, with an overall very positive progression rate to
known destinations.

Student numbars

In 2020021 the College has delivered activity that has produced £5,851k in funding body main
altocation funding {2019/20 - £5,740k). The College had 1,019 Education Skills Funding Agency
funded students both full time and part time (2019/20 1,358).

In addition to Further Education students, the College has students in Higher Education,
Apprenticeships, Workplace Leamning and fee-paying students. The College had in tolal
approximately 444 such students in 2020021 (2019720 260).

Payment Perfformance

The Late Payment of Commercial Debis (Interest) Act 1998, which came into force on 1 November
15908, requires colleges, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, to make payments to suppliers
within 30 days of either the pravision of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was
received, The target set by the treasury for paymant to suppliers within 30 days is 83 per cant.
During the accounting period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021, based on a sample the College paid 85
per cent of its imices within 30 days. The College incurred no interest charges in respect of late
payment for this period,
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EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

Equality

Kingston Maurward College is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who leam and
work here.  The College respects and positively values differences in race, gender, sexual
onientation, disability, religion or befief and age. The College strives vigorously to remove conditions
which place people al a disadvantage and will actively combat bigotry. This policy s resourced,
implemented and monitored on a planned basis. The College’s Equality Policy is published on the
Callege's websile,

The College ensures compliance with all relevant equality legistation including the Equality Act 2010,

The College is a "Disability Confident’ employer and has committed to the principles and objectives of
this standard (previously known as 'Positive About Disabled People'). The College considers all
employment applications from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individuals
concerned, and guaraniees an interview to any disabled applicant who meets the essential criteria far

the post

Where an axisting employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that employment with
the Caollege continues. The College's policy is o provide training, career development and
oppartunities for promoftion, which, as far as possible, provides identical opportunities to those of non-
disabled employess,

The College has committed 1o the 'Mindful Employer' initiative to assist the mental health well-being of
staff. The College ks also aiming to be accredited to the Committed o Equality (C2E) standard and
has refreshed its training programme for staff on Equality & Diversity.

Disability Statement
The College seeks 1o achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010,
The College Is commitbed o,

Prometing equality of opportunity for disabled people:

Eliminating unlawful discrimination;

Eliminating disability related harassment;

Promoling posilive altitudes towards disabled people;

Encouraging participation of disabled people in public life;

Taking into account disabled peoples” disabilities, even where that involves treating disabled

pecple more favourably;

* Having an admissions policy for all students which is described in the College charter, Appeals
against decision not to offer a place are dealt with under the complaints policy:

= Having a College Equality and Diversity pack which is available to all students and staff and is
included as part of the College induction procedures;

=  Having in place a number of student support tutors and assistants who can provide a variety of
support for learning. There is a continuing programme of staff development to ensure the
provision of a high level of appropriate support for students who have learning difficulties andior
disabilities:

* Counselling and weifare services are described in the Student Guide, which |s issued to

students togather with the Complaints and Disciplinary Procedure at induction,

12
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Trade Union Facility Time

The Trade Union {Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulation 2017 require the College to
publish information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College.

‘Number of emplayees who were representatives FTE employee number
for the period 0
Percentage of time Number of employees
0% - 0
1 - 50% D
51— 09% 0
100% 0
“Total cost of facility time B £0
Tatal pay bill : 3
Percentage of total bill spant on facility time 0%
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a 0%
| percentage of total paid facility ime

GOING CONCERN

Financial performance since 31 July 2021 has been challenging, with an anticipated deficit at 31 July
2022 being £1,313k and EBITDA deficit baing £234k.

The Financial Plan indicates that the college should have sufficient cash resarves to meet its liabilities
as they fall due for at least the next twelve months, although as with the previcus year, the College’s
cash position towards the end of March sees cash resources at the lowest level. However, there is no
requirement for a short-term overdralt facility to manage its cash flows during this period.

The rigk that the Caollege may not be a going concern due to lack of available finance is therefora
considerad low,

Certain key assumptions underpin the financial forecasts:

» The College's revenue streams are sensitive to student numbers. Whilst not unusual for the
student numbers to vary during the course of an academic year, it is unlikely that there will
be such a significant mevement in year so as to have a material effect on going concern. The
actual full-time student numbers in Octaber are only slightly lower than anticipated. With 16-
18 funding lagaing by a year any variation in student numbers this year will not impact until
2023024,

= The College revenue streams are sensitive to the performance of its commercial activities.
Again, whilst it is not unusual for an area of College commercial activity 1o under-perform it
would normally be undikely that all of the commercial cperations undes-perform in the period of
the review — the exception being in recent years where Covid caused the temporary closure of

many operakions.
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s The 2022-23 budget has been set at a prudent level, albeit there is some risk that inflation will
rise higher than anticipated which will have a negative impact on many areas in the budget.
There are also challenges with respect to energy costs which management are looking to
mitiggate.

* ESFA clawback in respect of apprenticeship funding is included at E850k. Further provision
may be necessary if discussions progress with the ESFA although we are still awailing a
detailed response 1o evidence submitted to support our funding claims. In the meantime, the
ESFA have confirmed that they would not seek to recover funds in a way that would
destabilise the College's finances.

The financial performance in both 2020021 and 2021/22 meant that both NatWest and Barclays loan
covenants were breached. Both loans and the CBILs loan were refinanced in Seplember 2022 into a
single NalWest loan with the Barclays loan being fully repaid.

The new NatWest secured loan for £2.49m is over a 20-year period, with a capital repayment holiday
during the first 12 months. The impact of the new lean is positive on annual cash flow. There are no
bank covenants atfached 1o the new loan, NatWest fully support the College with new loan and there
is no evidence lo suggest that NafWest would not be willing to provide additional financial support in
the future.

The sale of two non-current assets will benefit cash flows early in 2022-23. An Options Agreemant for
the sale of land at Maurward Close was agreed in December 2021 with receipts from the sale due in
Movemnber 2022. Gardeners Coltage went onto the market in September 2022, and with immediate
offers being recerved over the asking price. The sale is anticipated to complete in early 2023,

The Governors have reviewed the sirategic plan, activity and financial projections and consider that
the College has adequate resources to meet its ongoing liabilities and continue operations for at least
the next welve months,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no events to report after the reporting period.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they ana
each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors are unaware; and

each member has taken all the steps that he or she cught to have taken to be aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the College's auditors are aware of that information.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 31 October 2022 and signed on its behalf by

@Jﬁ:b—:\"
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The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of
the College to obiain a belter understanding of its governance and legal structure. This
staternant covers the period from 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The College endeavours to conduct its business:

. In accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in
Public Life (selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesly and
leadarship);

i In full accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Association of Calleges in
The Code of Good Governance for English Colleges ("the Code’).

The Gollege is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance
and In particutar the College has adopted and complied with the Foundation Code. We have
not adopted and therefore do not apply the UK Corporate Governance Code. Howaver, we
have reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upen best practice
available, including those aspecis of the UK Corporate Govemance Code we consider (o be
relevant to the further education sector and best practice,

In the opinion of the Governars, the College complies with all the provisions of the Code, and
it has complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2021. This epinien is based on an internal
review of compliance with the Code reported to the board on 19 Oclober 2021. The
Governing Body recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it
has a particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times

In carrying cut its responsibilities, it takes full account of The Code of Good Governance for
English Colleges issued by the Association of Colleges in March 2015, which it formally
adopted on 7 July 2015, The Corporation has also adopted the AcC Colleges Senior Staff
Remuneration Code on 5 March 2010,

THE CORFORATION
Members of the corporation

The Members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature
of this report were as listed in the table below:
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Hami Date of Term of | Date of Status af Commitiees Served | Corparation |
Appoiniment Office Resignation | Appointment Meeting
_____ Atbendance
Wr R Barer | Dec 18 3 years incepandent Ezfabe FiT]
Ll d Financs & Resgprces
Governancs,
Romuneration &
——— - i - m ..... e e
Miza H Musg A 1 yoar R kg Indepandenl Quaity & Stardands 418
_Baxier Member
MR Feb 20 3 yoars Indapeadant Estale
Beoisirs Membsar Finance & Resouroes
MrJ Bullan | July 20 3 years Independent | Awdit & Assurance T
- Member Estale
Migs H Sopt 1 3 yaars Stalt Membear (4]
M & Davies | Jan 15 3 yaars Indepandeanl Eslabo 6/
Heappointed Jan M
- 18 & Jan 1
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Wi A Fool | Juni2 3 yoars indepondord | Ouality & Slandards | 778
Reappoiniod Jun Bemniar Gowernanoe,
15 Juri 18 & Remuraration &
Juna # Search
e A, Ot 19 3 pears | 1RO Glaf Membes | Finance & Rescurces | 34
Jackson
MsF May 21 3 yaars S1af Mamiber i
Jonkine % 7y
Mir J Do 19 Iymars | FAMAT Staff Mamber | Cuality & Standards did
| Fenderdinn s
Mr D Knaght | March 20 3 yaars Il egardenl Audi B Assurance T
Marmbes (Chair)
Mi R dun = 14 3 years Incdeperent Finance & Resowces | 714
Lasseser Reappoiried Jun Mamber (Chair}
=17 & June 20 Cluality & Slandards
Govarmancs,
Ramureration &
Search
Wice Chair Corporation
Trom 180616
mugn D12
MG Juily 18 1 ynars Eslale T
Ladddan flembar Finance & Resouroos
D & Minard | Sep 17 3 ymars Indapendant A & Ascurance B
Reappainbed Sepl Membaer
a0
MrB Ot 16 3 ymars Independen| Exlate i
Murpéy Faappoinied O Miamiber
18 & Oct 21
Mrs N Jan 32 3 years Inclopancdan -
| Mewman [ Member .
Ms L Payme | Ocl 20 A years 0505721 Indepanden Qisality & Standards e
Iemiber
Mrs V Prior | Mag 17 Ayears | 110221 Independent | Quality & Siandards 1)
Reappointed bar SMomber [Chiair)
20 Gowamanos,
Remunoration &
- Snarch .
MrL Rake | Aug 16 Ex- Prircpal Estatn CT]
officin Finance & Resources,
Quakly & Standards,
Goviedmanoes,
Remuneration &
" = Saarch
Mr A Jdam 17 3 years 18110720 Iredegpendent Finance & Resowrces | DN
Robinson Faappoinied Jan Miasrribist
20
MrCHose | Mov 20 1 year 2045 Sbudant 2
”@m
Mirs K Fob 21 3 yeas Inclepsamderi Cluality & Standards 5i5
Treylor Member (Chalr from 1/021)
hebes v Sopl 21 3 years Indapandend am
Thomas il Membar
Rl J Tienell Sopt 1 Iyeaws | JUON Indapanders Cuality & Siandands TiE
Reappointed Sep Muirnber Finance & Rescurces
14, Sep 17, & Sep Gowamance,
20 Ramunaration &
Seanch
Comporation Chalr
) from 11815
MaD May 21 3 yebrs Siafl Mamber 4
%r‘ e
Mrs V July 10 A Ghark )
Gifford
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The governance framework

It is the Corporation's responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of
strateqgy, performance, resources and standards of conduct

The Carporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial
performance of the College together with other information such as performance against
funding targets, proposed capital expenditure, quality matters and personnel related mallers
such as health and safety and environmental issues. The Corporation has mel 8 times this
year, with further updates and urgent decisions undertaken via the Governars’ Virtual Office
(GVO).

The Corporation conducts its business through a number of committees. Each commillee
has terms of refarence which have been approved by the Corporation. These committees are
Audit & Assurance, Estale, Finance & Resources, Quality & Standards and Governance,
Remuneration & Search. Full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be
confidential by the Corporation, are available on the College website www.kmc.ac.uk and are
also available from the Clerk to the Corporation at Kingston Maurward College, Dorchester,
Dorset, OTZ BPY.

The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of fimancial and personal interests of the
Gaovernors. The register is available for inspaction at the above address.

All Gavernors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of thair duties
at the College’s expense and have access to the Clerk of the Corporation, who is responsible
to the Board for ensuring that all applicable procedures and regulations are complied wilh.
The appointment, evaluation and removal of the Clerk are matlers for the Corporation as a
whole.

Formal agendas, papers and reporis are supplied to the Governcrs in a timely manner, prior
to Board meetings. Briefings are also provided on an ad-hoc basis.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or
group dominates its decision making process. The Corporation considers that each of ils
non-executive members is independent of management and free from any business or ather
relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair and Accounting Officar
are saparala.

The Corporation, and ts Committees, has continued to meet virtually during Covid-18 and
upheld their duties in the usual way.

Appointments to the Corporation

Any new member appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the
Corparation as a whole. The Corporation has a Govemnance, Remuneration & Search
Committee, consisting of six members of the Corporation, which is responsible for the
selection and nomination of any new member for the Corporation’s consideration. The
Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required

Members of the Corporation are appointed for a term of office nof exceeding 3 years but are
eligible for reappointment to a maximum of 12 years on ihe recommendation of the
Governance Remuneration & Search Commitiee once past performance is reviewed 1o
ensure the Corporation has the skilled membsers necessary to carmy out its functions.
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Corporation performance

The Corporation sell-assessment reviewed commitiee performance and governor attendance
and training and skills,

Owerall governor attendance was B0%, 10% higher than the target set by governors,
Governors also completed an annual skills audit survey which has provided the basis of the
future appointmaents and a training programmae,

The Corporation carried cut a self-assessment of its own performance for the year ended 31
July 2021 and graded itsell as Good on the Ofsted scale,

Remuneration committes

The Remuneration Commilles has been merged with the Search & Governance Committae.
Throughout the year ending 31 July 2021, the College's Remuneration Committee comprised
six members of the Corporation. The Committes's responsibilities are to consider and
approve the remuneration and benefits of the Principal, ofher senior post holders and the
Clerk, Details of remuneration paid for the year ended 31 July 2021 are set oul in note 6 to
the financial statements

The Committee has regard to the AcC Colleges Senior Staff Remuneration Code adopted by
the Corporation on 5% March 2019,

Audit & Assurance Committes

The Audit & Assurance Commiliee comprises three members of the Corporation (exciuding
the Principal and Chair and members of the Finance and Resources Commiltee) and two co-
opted members, The Committee operates in accordance with writlen terms of reference
appraved by the Corporation.

The Audit & Assurance Committee meets at least three times per year and provides a forum
far reporting by the College's internal auditors, reporting accountants and financial stalements
auditors, who have access to the Committee for independent discussion, without the
presence of College management. The Committea also receives and considers reports from
the main FE Funding Bodies as they affect the College’s business.

The College's internal auditors review the systems of intemal control, risk management
comtrals and governance processes, in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report
their findings to management and the Audit & Assurance Committes.

Management Is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and
internal audit undertake an annual follow up review to ensure such recommendations have
been implemented,

The Audit & Assurance Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of
internal auditors, reporting accountants and financial statements auditors and their
remunaration for audit and non-audit work as well as reporting annually to the Corporation,
The Audit & Assurance Committee met five times in the year to 31 July 2021, The members
of the committee and their attendance are shown belaw:

Committes member Meetings attended
Mr D Knight (Chair) 5
Mr J Bullan 5
Dr A Minard 5
Miss R King {co-opted) |
Mr H Cox (co-optad) 4
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INTERNAL CONTROL
Scope of responsibility

The Corporation Is ulimately responsible for the College’s systemn of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than
aliminate the sk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting
Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of
the College's policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets
for which he is personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned 1o him
in the Funding Agreement between Kingsion Maurward College and the funding bodies. He
is also responsible for reporting to the Corporation any material weaknesses or breakdowns
in internal control,

The purpose of the system of internal control

The systern of interal control is based on an ongeing process designed 1o identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of College polcies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage
them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in
place in Kingston Maurward College for the year ended 31 July 2021 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and accounts

Capacity to handle risk

The Corparation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate thase
risks. The Corporation is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the College's significant risks that has been in place for the period
ending 31 July 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. This
process is regularly reviewed by the Corporation.

The risk and control framawork

The system of internal contral is based on the framework of regular management infarmation,
administrative procedures incheding the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and
pccountability. In particular, it includes:

« Comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed
by the gaverning body,

« Regular reviews by the goveming body of periodic and annual financial reports which
indicate financial performance against forecasts;

»  Selting targets o measure financial and other performance;

« Clearly defined capital investment control guidelines; and

+ The adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate.

The College has an internal audit service, which eperates in accordance with the
requirements of the ESFA's Post-16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit
service ks informed by an anatysis of the risks to which the College is exposed, and annual
internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks and the internal audit
plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the Audit & Assurance
Committee, At minimum, annually, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) provides the goveming
body with a report on internal audit activity in the College.
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The repert includes the HIA's independent apinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
College’s system of risk management, controls and governance processes.

Risks faced by the Corporation

The Corporation has appainted and Audil & Assurance Committes which identifies, evaluates
and manages risk by regularly reviewing the Corporate Risk Register which is updated by the
College’s Risk Management Group. The Corporation receives the Corporate Risk Register
and is assured by the Audit & Assurance Commitiee that the risks are being appropriately
managed. The Chair of the Audit and Assurance Committee attends the Risk Management
Group meetings which are held on a termly basis 1o review the Corporate Rigk Register in
detail. Going forward the Risk Register will be linked to the strategic aims of the College with
each risk being mapped to different Corporation committees to review the relevant risks. The
main risks to the College are identified under the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section of
this report on page 8.

The Audit and Assurance Commiltee sets a programme of internal audit reviews, carried out
by externally appointed auditors, 1o evaluate performance and risk for different areas of the
College on an annual basis. All reports are reviewed by the Committee and an Annual Audit
Committee report produced for submission ko the Corporation.

Control weaknesses identified

The Annual Internal Audit report identified one key risk relating to the completion of an
angoing Balance Sheet Review to ensure that a robust Forecast outturn and relling 24 month
cashflow forecast is in place. This action has now been put in place by the Finance Directar,
The Internal Auditors confirmed that they can provide the Corporation with reasonable
assurance that Kingston Maurward College's governance, risk management and systems of
internal control were operaling adequately and effectively and that there were no instances
where any breakdown of control resulted in any material discrepancy,

During the year the College suffered a financial fraud and the process was reviewed by
Bishop Fleming. The Auditors found that the college had insurance for cyber fraud and an
investigation was carried out by PWC's cyber security department. This investigation was
able to detect the breakdown in controls and how the fraud had occurred. It was found that
this was done in a Uimely manner and that any recommendations by the investigation were
acted upon. Bishop Fleming found that the Callege acted appropriately and contacted the
relevant organisations once the fraud was discovered. Al its meeting on 23 November 2021
the Audit and Assurance Commiltes received the update on the fraud and were content with
the actions carried out by the college. The Commilles were satisfied with the process
followed by external auditors and that the Committee could rely on the external assurance.

Responsibilities under funding agreements

The Corporation of the College has met its responsibllities under funding agreements through
due diigence and appropriate corporate governance models and activities. The Corporation
has at all imes co-operated with the requirements of contracts provided for and by the ESFA,
and applied appropriate audit assurance and recovery of funds for the ESFA where required.
Appropriate carte and due didigence has been applied in the defivery of funded activities to
ensure they meet the requirements of the ESFA, alongside the needs of any additional
requirements dependent on the funding models, stream or partners involved. These
requirements are monitored through tiers of assurance, including the Senior Management
Team, appropriate Corporation committees such as Finance & Resources and Audit &
Assurance, and a third tier on internally support audit correlating with external audit activity if
undertaken.
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The College has complied with all of its funding agreements.

The Audit & Assurance Commillee has advised the board of governors that the Corporation
has an effective framework for governance and risk management in place. The Audil &
Assurance Committee befieves the Corporation has effective internal controls in place.

The specific areas of work undertaken by the Audit & Assurance Committee in 202021 and
up to the date of approvail of the financial statements are:
Reasonable Assurance Opinion

= R L

16-18 Leamner Journey
HR & Payroll

ALS & High Needs Siudents
Student Retention & [ntervantion

Risk Management

Fundamental Financial Conlrods

Cashflow Forecasting
Follow Up

Statement from the audil committes

Substantial Assurance Opinicn

Reasonable Assurance Opinicn
Reasonable Assurance Opinion
Reasonable Assurance Opinion
Reasonable Assurance Opinion
Reasonable Assurance Opinion

Substantial Assurance Opinion

The audit & assurance commillee has advised the board of governors that the corporation
has an effective framework for governance and risk management in place. The audit &
assurance commitiee believes the corporation has effective internal controls in place.

The specific areas of work undertaken by the audit & assurance committee in 2020021 and up

to the date of the approval of the financial statements are:

21

Kingston Maurward College — Internal Audit Opinions and No of
Recommendations 2020/21 recommendations
o & priori

Ref | Audit Title Design Application/ Overall M [L

| e Compliance Assurance -

1. | 16-18 Student Journey: | Adequale | Adequals Reasonable |0 2 o 1]
Enquiry to Enrolment i

2. | HR & Payroll_ Adequate | Good Substantial |0 |0 (2 |2

3. | Learning Support and Adeaquate Adequate Reasonable | 0 3 2 i]
High Needs Funding A

4. | 16-18 Student Journey: | Good Adequate Reasonable | O 3 0 0
Retention & ntervention x.

5. | Risk Management Late uakae Reasonable | O 1 4 |0

6. | Key Financial Controls. %ﬁ@&imunam D |6 |3 [0

8. | Follow-up of Previous | NIA M, Substantial 0 2 0 1]
Intarnal Audit

| Pecommendations | -—

9. | Cashfiow Forecasting | Good Adequale Reasonable | 1 0 o |0
and Bank Covenant
Monitoring B

| Total Number of Recommendations 1 16 |11 |2
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Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal confrol. His review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is
informed by:

#  The work of the internal audilors:

«  The work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework

+ Comments made by the College’s financial statements auditors, the reporting accountant
for regularity assurance, the appointed funding auditors (for colleges subject to funding
audit) in their management letters and other reports

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of his review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Audit & Assurance Committee, which
oversees the work of the internal auditor and other sources of assurance, and a plan o
address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

The Principal and senior management team receives reports setting out key performance and
risk indicators and considers possible control issues brought to thelr attention by early
warning mechanisms, which are embadded within the departments and reinforced by risk
awareness training. The Principal and senior management team and the Audit & Assurance
Commities also receive regular reports from internal audit and other sources of assurance,
which include recommendations for improvement.

The Audit & Assurance Commities's role in this area is confined to a high-level review of the
arrangements for internal contral. The Corporation's agenda includes a regular itam for
consideration of risk and control and receives reports thereon from the senior management
team and the Audit & Assurance Commiltee. The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant
degres of assurance and not merely reporting by exception. At its December 2021 meeting
the Corporation carmied out the annual assessment for the year ended 31 July 2021 by
considering documentation from the senior management team and internal audit, and taking
account of events since 31 July 2021.

Based on the advice of the Audit & Assurance Committee and the Accounting Officer, the
Corporation is of the opinion that the College has an adequate and effective framework for
govemnance, risk management and control, and has fulfiled its statutory respansibility for “the
effective and efficient use of resources, the solvency of the inslifution and the body and the
safeguarding of thelr assels”

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 31 October 2022 and signed on ils
behalf by

mnﬁf

Robert Lassoter Lu ke
Chair Accounting Officer
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The Corporation has considered its responsibility fo notify the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) of any material imegularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and
conditions of funding, under the College's grant funding agreement and contracts with ESFA.
As part of our considerafion we have had due regard to the requirements of the grant funding
agreements and contracts with ESFA,

We confirm, on behalf of the Corporation, that after due enquiry, and o the best of our
knowiedge, we are unable to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the
Caollege, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
College's grant funding agreements and contract with ESFA.

We confirm that no instances of material imegularity, impropriaty or funding non-compliance
have been discovered to date, If any instances are identified after the date of this statement,

ill be notified to the ESFA.
@cﬂu‘-"

Robert Lasseter
ounting Officer Chair
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The members of the Corporation are required to present audited financial statemeants for each
financial year.

Within the terms and conditions of the College’s grant lunding agreements and contracts with
ESFA, the Corporation, through its Accounting Officer, is required 1o prepare financial statements
and an cperating and financial review for each financial year in accordance with the 2015
Statemeni of Recommended Praclice — Accounting far Further and Higher Education, ESFA's
College Accounts Direction and UK's Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College and its surplus / deficil of income over
expendilure for that period,

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is required to;

Select suilable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
Make judgements and estimales that are reasonable and prudent;
State whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject lo any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements: and

« Prepare financial statements on the going concearn basis, unless it is inappropriate to assume
that the College will continue in operation

The Corporation is also required to prepare a Members' Report which describes what it Is trying 1o
de and how it is going about it, including information about the legal and administrative status of the
College.

The Corparation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy, at any time, the financial position of the College, and which enable it to
ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordanca with relevant legislation including
the Further and Higher Educalion Act 1992 and Charities Act 2011, and relevant accounting
standards. It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably open to it to safeguard its assets
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities,

The Corporation is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Callege website: the work
carried oul by auditors does not involve conslderation of these matters and accordingly, the auditors
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial stalements since
they were initially presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in cther
Jurisdictions.

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied
fior the purposes intended by Parliament and that financial transactions conform to the authorities
that govern them. In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that funds from ESFA are used
only in accordance with EEFA’s grant funding agreements and contracts and any other conditions
that may be prescribed from time to time. Members of the Corporation mus! ensure that there are
appropriate financial and managemant controls in place o safequard public and other funds and
ensure they are used properly. In addition, members of the Corporation are responsible for
securing economical, efficient and effective management of the College's resources and
expanditure, so that the benefits that should be derived from the application of public funds from
ESFA are nol put al risk.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 31 October 2022 and signed on its behalf

RL{;HEJJ

Robert Lasseter
Chair



Kingston Maurward College

Independent auditors’ report to the corporation of Kingston
Maurward College

Cpinion

We have audited the financial statements of Kingston Maurward College (the ‘corporation’) for the
year ended 31 July 2021 which comprise the Consclidated and College Statements of
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and College Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and
College Statements of Changes in Reserves, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education (the 'FE HE
SORP") and the College Accounts Direction for 2020 to 2021,

In our epinion, the financial statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the group and corporation's affairs as at 31 July 2021
and of the group and corporation's income and expenditure, gains and losses, changes in
reserves, and of the group's cash flows, for the year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepled
Accounting Practice; and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the FE HE SORP, College
Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 and the Office for Students” Accounts Direction.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (15As (LIK))
and applicable law. Our responsibifities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of cur report. We are independent of
the group and corporation in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant o our audit
of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
aur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We believe that the audit
evidence we have ablained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusion relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the members’ use of the golng concerm
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial staterments is appropriate.

Based on Ihe work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individualky or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the corporation's
ahility to continue as a going concern for a perod of at least iwelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the members with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this repart.

Other information

The ather infarmation comprises he information included in the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, other than the financial statements and our auditor's repart thereon, The members are
respensible for the other infarmation. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other
information and, in doing s0, consider whether the other information is malerially inconsistent with
the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatemeant in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of tha olher information, If, based on the work
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we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other infarmation, we
are required bo report that fact.

We have nothing to repost in this regard,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Post 16 Audit Code of
Fractice |ssued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency ('ESFA’) requires us to report to you if,
in our opinion;
* adequale accounting records have not been kept by the corporation, or retums adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
= the corporation's financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or
= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Office for Students’ Accounts Direction
In our apinion;
= Funds from whatever source administered by the corporation for the specific purposes have
been applied lo those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legistation: and
= Funds provided by tha Offica for Students ("OfS") and Research England have been applied
in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions and any other terms and conditions
attached to them,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Office for
Students’ Accounts Direction requires us 1o report to you if, in our opinion:
* the corporalion’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in the notes to the financial statamants,
has been materially misstated; or
+ the corporation’'s expenditure on access and participation activities for the financial vear has
been materially misstated,

Responsibilities of the corporation

A& axplained maore fully in the Staterment of Responsibiliies of the Members of the Corporation
Board, the corporation is respansible for the preparation of the financial statemants and for being
salisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the cov poration
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar eror

In preparing the financial statements, the corporation is responsible for assessing the group and
corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the corporation either intend
to liguidate the group and corporation or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do s0,

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee thal an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (LK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thase financial statemeants.

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We
design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatemenis
in respect of imegularities, including frawd.
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In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of Imegularities, including
fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we congidered the following:

= the nature of the sector, control environment and the group and corporation’s performance;
« results of our enquiries of management and the members, including the committees charged

with governance over the group and corporation's finance and controf, about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of imegularities;

any maiters we identified having obtained and reviewed the group and corporalion’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to: identifying, evaluating and
complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-
compliance; detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge
of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud; the internal controls established to mitigate risks of
fraud or non-complance with laws and regulations;

how the corporation ensured it met its obligations arising from it being financed by and
subject fo the govemnance requirements of the ESFA and OfS, and as such material
compliance with these obligations s required o ensure the corporation will conlinue to
receive its public funding and be authorised to operate, including around ensuring there 15 no
material unauthorised use of funds and expenditure;

how the group and parent corporation ensured it met s obligations to its principal reguiator,
the Secretary of State for Education; and

the mafters discussed among the audit engagement team and involving relevant internal
corporation specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements
and any potential indicalors of fraud,

As a result of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist
within the group and corporation for fraud, which included incorrect recagnition of revenue and
management override of controls using manual journal entries and these were identified as having
the greatest potential for fraud,

In comman with all audits under 15As (UK), we are also required to perform specific proceduras (o
respond to the risk of management override. We also obtained an understanding of the legal and
regulatory frameworks that the group and corporation cperates in, focusing on provisions of those
laws and reguiations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amaounts and
disclosures in the financial staterments. The key laws and regulations we considered in this contest
included the College Accounts Direction, the Office for Studenis’ Accounts Direction, and the FE HE
SORP.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect

on the financial statements bul compliance with which may be fundamental to the corporation’s
ability to operate or to aveid a material penalty. These included safeguarding regulations, data
protection regulations, cccupational health and safety regulations, education and inspections
legislation, and employment kegislation,

Our procedures 1o respond to risks identified included the following:

« reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supparting documentation to
assess compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a
direct effect on the financial statements;

+ reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to
assess the recognition of revenue,

= enquiring of group and corporation’s management and members concerning aclual and
potential litigation and claims,

« performing procedures to confirm material compliance with the requirements of the ESFA
and OFS5;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that
may indicate risks of material misstatement due o frauwd;

» reading minutes of meetings of the members and reviewing internal control reports; and
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* in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of contrals, testing the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; and assessing whether the
judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias,

These procedures were considered at bolh the parent corporation and subsidiary level as
appropriate.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all
engagement team members, and remained alart to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with
laws and regulations throwghout the audit

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities,
inchading those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance
with regulation, This risk increases the more that compliance with a taw or regulation is removed
from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to
become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding irregularities
eccurming due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery,
collusion, omission or misrepresentation,

A further description of our responsibilities for the awdit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities, This description
forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the corporation, in accordance with Article 22 of the College's Articles
of Government. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the corporation those
matters we are required to state to it in an auditor's report and for no ather purpose, To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
corporation, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

Bishop Fleming LLP
Chartered Accolntants
Statutory Auditors
Stratus House
Emperor Way

Exater Business Park
Exeler

Devon
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Reporting accountant's assurance report on regularity to the
Corporation of Kingston Maurward (“the College”) and
Secretary of State for Education acting through the
Department for Education (“the Department”)

In accordance with the terms of cur engagement letter dated 30 June 2021 and further to the
requirements of funding agreement with the Education and Skills Funding Agency we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything has come o
our attention that would suggest that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and
income received by the College during the period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021 have nol
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions do not
conform to the authorities which govern them

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post 16 Audit Code of Praclice ("the
Code”) issued by the Department. In line with this framework, ocur work has specifically not
considered income received from the main funding grants generated through the
Individualised Learner Record returns, for which the Department has other assurance
arrangements in place.

This report is made solely to the Corporation of the College and Deparimant in accordance
with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Corporation of the College and the Department those malters we are required 1o
state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permilted by law, we do not
accept o assume respansibility to anyone other than the Corparation of the College and the
Department for cur work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the College and the reporting accountant

The Corparation of the College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher
Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for
ensuring that expenditure disbursed, and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our
profession’s ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance
with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Code. We report to you whather
anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that im all material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2020 o 31
July 2021 have not been applied lo purposes intended by Parliament or thal the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accardance with the Coda issued jointly by the
Department. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in that framework.

The chjective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence
express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would
become awara of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance
engagement. Accardingly, we do not express a positive opinion

Our engagement includes axamination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regulanity
of the College’s income and expenditure,
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The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes:

* Anassessment of the risk of malerial iregularity and impropriely across the College's
activities,

= Evaluation and validation of the processes and controls in place 1o ensure regularity
and propriety for the use of public funds, inchuding the consideration of the College's
sall-assessment questionnaire (SAQ);
Tasting transactions with related parties;
Sample testing of income to ensure that funds have been applied for the purposes that
they wete awarded, focused on areas assessed as high risk;

= Confirming through enguiry and sample testing that the College has complied with its
procurement policies and that these policies comply with delegated authorities; and

= Reviewing any evidence of impropriely resulting from our work and determining
whether it was significant enough to be referenced to our regularity repart

The list ks not exhaustive, and we performed additional procedures designed to provide us
with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a limited assurance conclusion on regularity
consistent with the requiremants of the Coda.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has came to our attention which suggests that in all
material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August
2020 to 31 July 2021 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the
financial fransactions do not canform to the authorities which govern them.

Bifleop Fleteiny (L/

Bishop Fleming LLP
Charterad Accountants
Siatutory Auditors
Stratus House
Emperor Way

Exeter Business Park
Exeter

Davon

ExX1 308

[abe: 31st October 2022
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Consolidated and College Statements of Comprehensive Income for the

year ended 31 July 2021

INCOME

Funding body grants

Tuition fees and education contracts
Other grants and conbracts
Dihar income

Investment Icome

Donations and Endowments
Total incoma

EXPENDITURE

Staff costs

Other operaling expenses
Dapreciation

Interast and other finance cosis
Total expenditure

{Deficit) before other gains
Profit on disposal of assals
{Deficit) before tax

Taxation

(Deficit) for the year

Actuarial gaind{loss) in respect of pensions
Total Comprehensive (Expense) for the year

Motes

=f % On S G B

12

1"

24

Year ended Year andecd
3 July 2021 3 July 2020
Restatad
Group College Group College
£'000 £°000 E'00D E'000
4,799 4,799 5,911 5911
TDE T8 1,045 1,045
1,143 1,122 229 180
2,036 1,865 2,308 1,892
- : 1 1
38 38 24 24
T B2 8,534 9,518 8,063
6,305 B, 305 6,370 6,026
3,793 3,630 3,688 3,542
662 G662 BGE Gar7
214 214 213 213
10,974 10,811 10,937 10,418

(2,252) (2,277) (1,419) {1,355)
- . 31 311
(2,252) {2,277) (1,108) {1,044)
(2,252) (2,277) {1,108) (1,044)
514 544 {3,057) (3,957
{1,738) {1,763) (5,065)  (5,001)

All lems of income and expenditure relate o continuing activities,
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Income and Revaluation Restricted Total
expendifure resene FESErves
account
E'000 E'000 E'000 £'000
Group
Balance at 1 August 2018 {4.110) 4,327 - 217
Surplusideficit) from the income and
expendilure account {1,108} - ) {1,108)
Other comprehensive income (3,957) = - {3,957)
Transfers betwean revaluation and
Income and expenditure reserves )
18 {19) =
_ (5,048) {19 - {5,065)
Balance at 31 July 2020 (9,156) 4,308 - (4,848)
:Dal]:i:]_ fram the income and
expenditure account (2.252) - (2.252)
Other comprehensive income 514 2 - 514
Transfers between revaluation and
Inceme and expendilure reserves .
19 (19) et
Total comprehensive expense {1,714 {19} . {1,738)
Balance at 31 July 2021 {10,875) 4,288 - (6,586)
College
Balance at 1 August 2019 (4, 8109 d 327 - 217
Surplusideficit) from the income and
expenditure account {1,045) 3 ) {1,045)
Other comprehensive expanse (3,957) " " (3,957)
Transfers between revaluation and
Ineome and expenditure resanes
R | ) (18} ey e
14, 983) (18) . {5.002)
Balance at 31 July 2020 (9,093 4,308 - 4,785
{Deficit) from the income and
expenditure account (2.277) : (2,277)
Other comprehensive income 614 : H 514
Transfers betwean revaluation and
Income and expenditune reserves 18 {19 )
Total comprehensive expense {1,744) (19) . (1,763)
Balance at 31 July 2021 (10,837) 4,289 - (B,548)
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Notes  Group College Group College

2021 2021 2020 2020
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Mon-current assels
Tangible Fixed assels 12 18,819 15,819 16,831 15,831
Intangible Fixed assets 12 M i 148 148
15,960 15960 15979 15879
Current assets
Stocks 14 502 490 374 353
Trade and other receivables 15 612 T43 BGE 719
Cash and cash eguivalents 18 1,000 1,005 121 54
2,123 2,238 1,163 1,136
Creditors = amounts falling due within 16
one year _ 12,528) {2,705) (1,838)  (1,748)
Net current (liabilities) _ (s05) (467) (675) (612)
Total assets less current labilities 15,455 15,493 16,304 15,367
Creditors = amounts falling due after more
than one year 17 (9,942 {9.842)  (B.B51) {8,651)
Provisions
Defined benefit abligations 24 (12,088) {12,009) (11,501) {11,501}
Total net (liabilities) (6,586) {6,548) i4,848) (4,785}
Unrestricted Reserves
Incame and expanditure account {10,875) (10,837)  (B,156) (8,083)
Revaluation reserve — 4,289 4,269 4.308 4,308
Total unrestricted reserves {6,586) {6,548) (4,848) (4,785)
The financial statements on pages 31 to 58 were approved and authorised for issue by the corporation
on 31 October 2022 and were signed on s be f date by:
LLosets h
i
Robert Lasseter ke
Chair Accounting Officer
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Cash flow from operating activities

(Defici) for the year

Adjustment for non-cash items

Depreciation

Deferred capital grants released to income
(Increaseldecrease in sfocks

(Increase)decrease in deblors

Increasel{decrease) in creditors due within one year
Pensions costs less conbributions payable

Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Interest pavable

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Met cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Praceads from sale of fixed assets
Deaferred capital grants recelved
Payments made to acquire fixed assets

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Interest element of finance leasa rental payments
Mew unsecured loans

Repayments of amounts borrowed

Capital element of finance lease rental payments

Increase [ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Increase [ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year
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Motes 201
£'000

{2.252)

662
(243}
(128)
56
827
853

214

il

2020
E£1000

(1,108)

666
(2300
(3)
(188)

510

213
(311)
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Notes to the Accounts for the year ended 31 July 2021

1. Accounting policies
General Information

Kingslon Maurward College was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992. The
College is situated one mile east of Dorchester in Dorset and offers a range of full and parl time courses
and specialises in land based and related subjects. As part of its educational role the College runs a
750 acre mixed farm, equestrian centre and countryside visilor altractions,

Statement of accounting policies and estimation technigues

The follewing accounting policies have been appled consistently in dealing with tems which ane
cansidered material in relation to the financial statements.

Basis of proparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended
Practice. Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2018 (the 2018 FE HE SORP), the College
Accounts Direction for 2020-21 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 - "The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland” (FRS 102).
The College is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements
af FRS 102

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use af certain critical
accounting estimates. |t also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Colbge's
accounting policies.

Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the college and its subsidiary, Kingston Maurward
Enterprises Limited, controlled by the group. Control is achieved where the group has the power o
govern the financial and operating palicies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Under
the purchass method of accounting, the results of subsidiary and associated urderiakings acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income and expenditure account from or up
to the date on which control of the undertaking passes. Intra-group sales and profits are eliminated fully
on cansalidatian.

In accordance with FRS 102, the activities of the student union have nol been consolidated because the
college does not control those activities

Golng concern

The activities of the College, together with the factors kely to affect its future development and
performance are set out in the Members Report. The financial position of the College, its cash flow,
liquidity and borrowings are presented in the financial statements and accompanying notes.

In 2020121 Covid-19 had an adversa impact in the operating financial performance of the College and
its subsidiary. The College received a financial health notice from the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) and was also put into formal financial intervention with a Motice to Improve, The Collegs
has also Instructed a Commissioner-Led Structure and Prospects Appraisal (SPA) review, to enable the
Trustees to effectively consider the future strategic and financial options avallable.

35



Kingston Maurward College

Notes to the Accounts for the year ended 31 July 2021

Fallowing the financial performance for the year ending 31 July 2021, the College has breached its
banking covenanis with bath Natwest and Barclays. Both banks issued waivers for these breaches.
However, the current financial forecasts show that College is planning to deliver a deficit of E465 000
and also expects 1o breach the same covenants in the year ending 31 July 2022, Therefore, the College
censolidated its debt into one secured loan with Natwest in September 2022 (excluding the LEP loan).
The new loan has no associated covenants. The College also has an ongoing review by the ESFA in
relatson to apprenticeships, which could lead to further clawbacks.

The College has made assumptions in forecasting performance for the coming 12 monthe and has
sought 1o be prudent in making these judgements. For this reason, the going concern basis has been
adopted for preparing the accounts,

Recognition of income
Ravenve grant funding

Government revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants are accounted for
under the accrual model as permilled by FRS 102. Funding body recurrent grants are measured in line
with best estimates for the period of what is recelvable and depend on the particular income siream
iméolved. The final grant income is normally determined with the conclusion of the year end
reconciliation process with the funding body following the year end, and the results of any funding
audits. 18-18 funding is nat subject to reconciliation and is therefore not subject to contract
adjustments.

The recurrent grant from Office for Students represents the funding allocations aftributable to the current
financial year and is credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Where part of & govemment grant is deferred, the deferred element is recognised as deferred income
within ereditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and creditors due after more than
one year as appropriate,

Grants (including research grants) from non-government sources are recognised in income when the
College is entitled to the income and performance related conditions have been met, Income received
in advance of performance related condifions being met is recognised as deferred Income within
creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the conditions are mat,

Capifal grant funding

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the
expected uselul life of the asset, under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102. Other, non-
governmental capital grants are recognised in when the College is entitied to the funds subject to any
performance related conditions being met.

Incomea recaived in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred
income within creditors on the Balance Sheet and released to income as conditions are met

Fee income

Income from tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and Is recognised in
the period for which it is received,

All income from shorit-term deposis is credited to the income and expenditure account in the pernoad in
which it is earned on a receivable basis.
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Investment income
Agency ammangements

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain discretionary supporn furds.,
Related payments recelved from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to stedents are
excluded from the income and expenditure of the College where the College is exposed to minimal risk
or enjoys minimal economic benefit rekated to the transaction,

Accounting for post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers’
Pension Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Penslon Scheme (LGPS). These are defined
benefit plans which are externally funded and contracted out of the Stale Second Pension.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS)

The TPS is an unfunded schema. Contributions o the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over emplaoyees’ working lives with the Collage in such a way that the pension costis a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method.

The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined
benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the contributions
recognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by

employeas.
Dorzal Local Gavarmnmen! Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS
liabslities are measured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate or
return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities, The actuanal
valuations are obtained at least triennially and updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of the scheme introductions,
benefit changes, setilemenis and curtailments. They are included as part of the staff costs incurred.

Net interest on the defined benefit liability’asset is also recognised in the Statement of Comprehansive
Income and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income in the
scheme assels, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets al the beginning of the
period by the rate used fo discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income
on scheme assels and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in interest and other
finance costs.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in actuarial gains and losses.

Short term Employment benefits

Shart term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) ang
recognised as an expense in the year in which the employess render sefvices to the College. Any
unused banefits are accrued and measured as the additional amount the College expects 10 pay as a
result of the unused entitlement.

Enhanced Pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongeing pension to a farmer member of staff is paid by the College
annually, An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancemant to the ongoing pension of a

larmer member of staff is charged in full to the college's income in the year that the member of staff
retires, In subsequent years a charge is mada to pravisions in the balance sheet.
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Tangible fixed assels

Tangible fixed assels are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Certain items of fixed assets that had been revalued to fair value on or prior to the date of
transition to the FE HE SORP, are measured on the basis of deemed cost, baing the revalued amount
at the date of that revalualion,

Where parts of a fixed asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate Hems of
fixed assets.

Land and bulidings

Freehold buildings are depreciated on a straight line basis over their expected useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings — 50 years

- Agricultural buildings - 20 years
Leasehold buildings — 50 years or shorter dependent on the length of the lease
Refurbishments — 5 or 10 years depending on the nature of the refurbishment

Freehold kand is not depreciated as it is considered to have an infinite useful life,

Freeheld bulldings are depreciated over their expected useful economic life to the College of between
20 and 50 years. The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations 1o buildings over the
period of their useful economic life of betwean 20 and 50 years,

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carrfied oul if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.

On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to refain the book value of land
and buildings, which were revalued in 2015,

Assels under construction

Assels under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and
other direct costs, incurred te 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Subsequent expenditure on axisting fived assels

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets after initial purchase it is charged to
the income: in the period it is incurred in, unless it increases the future benefits to the College, in which
cast it is capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis.

Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual item is recognised as expenditure in the period of
acquisition, All other equipment is capitalised at cost

Capitafised equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful economic life as
follonas:
Plant and equipment - 5 years on a straight-line basis
- Vehicles — 5 years on a straight-line basis
Computer equipment — 5 years on a straight-line basis
Furniture, fixtures and fittings — 10 years on a siraight-kne basis,

A review for impairment of a fived asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not ba recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value
of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment logses are
recognisad in the Slatement of Comprehensive Income and Expendibure.
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Irtangibie assels

Intangible assets costing more that £1,000 are capitalised and recognised when fulure economic
benefits are probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably, Amorfisation is
provided on intangible fixed assets at rates caloulated to write off the cost of each assel over its
expected useful life as follows:

Purchased computer software and software development costs — 5 years on a straight-line
basis

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cosis are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.
Investmaents

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the individual financial
statements,

Lrased assets

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-Ene basis over the lease term (o the
Statemnent of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Any lease premiums or incentives relatling to
leases signed after 1* August 2014 are spread over the minimum lease lerm.

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of
an asset are treated as finance leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased asset (or, If
lawer, the present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The comesponding
liakility to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as an obligation under finance leases. Aszeats held
under finance leases are included in tangible fixed assets and depreciated and assessed for impairment
lozzes in the same way as owned assels,

Minkmium lease payments are apportioned between finance charge and reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in proportion ko the capital
edament outstanding

Inventories

Farm stocks consist of livestock and crops and have been valued by indepandent valuers using
recognised valuation methods and included in the balance sheet at the percentages of market value as
recommended by HMRC Businass Income Manual (BIM55410 — Farming stock valeation IR232). Other
stocks have bean valued at the lower cost and net realisable value, Where necessary, provision is
made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective slocks.

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts, Deposils are repayable on
demand if they are in practice avallable within 24 hours without penalty,

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts

of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. An investment qualifies as a cash equivalent when it
has maturity of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition.
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Financial liabilities and equity

Financial Kabiliies and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s
contraciual obligations, rather than the financial instrurnent's legal form.

All loans, investments and short-term deposits hedd by the group are classified as basic financial
instruments in accordance with FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction
price less any transaction costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires that basic financial instruments are
subsaquently measured at amortised cost, however the college has calculated that the difference
between the historical and amortised cost basis s nol material and so these financial instruments are
stated on the balance sheet at historical cost. Loans and investments that are payable or receivable
within one vear are not discounted,

Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes, Accordingly,
the Coflege is potentially exempt from laxation in respect of income or capital gains recehved within
categories covered by sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation
of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, lo the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

The Collage is parlially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover arcund 3% of
the VAT charged on its inpuls. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and
added to the cost of tangible fived assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed
assets by nature,

The College's subsidiary company is subject to Corporation tax and VAT in the same way as any
commercial arganisation,

Provision and contingent liabilities

Pravisions are recognised when:
the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
it is probable that a transfer of economic benafit will be required to settie the obligation, and
- Areliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of the obligation

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required lo satth the
obligation s recognised at presant value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
as a finance cost in the statement of comprehensive income in the period it arises,

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events nat whally
wilhin the control of the College. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision
would otherwise be made but either is not probable that an overflow of resources will be required or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Cantingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
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Judgement in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgemaents.

Determing whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are
operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks
and rewards of ownership have beean transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by
lease basis

Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the College's tangible assets, Faclors
taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected
future financial performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash
generation unit, the viability and expected future performance of that unit

Other key sources of eslimation uncertainty

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives
taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and
residual values are assessed annually and may vary depaending on @ number of factors. In re-
assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and mainténance programmes
are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future markel
conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.

The present value of the Local Government Penslon Scheme defined benefit Rabilty depends
on a number of factors that are determined on an annual actuarial basis using a variety of
assumptions, The assumplions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions inchude
the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, will
impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. The actuary has used a roll forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation perfarmed at 31 March
2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2021. Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward appraach and a full actearial
valuation would impact the carrying amount of the pension lkability.

2a Funding body grants
Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2021 2021 2020 2020
Group College Group College
E'000 £°000 E'000 £°000
Recurrent granis
Education and Skills Funding Agency - adult 466 456 466 466
Education and Skills Funding Agency = 16 -18 4,240 4,740 4473 4473
Education and Skills Funding Agency - apprenticeships (400) (400) 536 535
Office for studenis 83 83 &1 81
Specific Grants
Covid 19 testing grant 21 21 : £
Teacher pension scheme confribulion grant 136 136 126 126
Releases of govarnment capital grants 243 243 59 59
HE gramt = - 170 170
Total 4,799 4,799 5,911 5,911

The apprenticeship income line is negative as it includes the anticipated ESFA clawback.
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2b  Grant and fes income

Grant income from the Office for Students
Grani income from other bodies

Fee income for taught awards (exclusive of VAT)

Fee income for research awards (exclusive of VAT)

Fee income from non-qualifying courses (exclusive of VAT)

Total

3 Tuitlon fees and education contracts

Adull education fees
Apprenticeship confracts

Fees for FE loan supported courses
Fees for HE loan supported courses
Tatal tuition fees

Education coniracts

Taotal

4  ther grants and contracts

Other grant income
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant

Total

& Other incomo

Residencies and catering

Other government capital grants
Farming activites

Oiher income generating aclivities
Oiher income

Total

42

Year ended
2021

Group
£'000

523

3 July Year ended 31 July
2021 2020 2020
College Group College
£°000 £'000 £'000
83 81 81

430 ara 373
523 454 454

Year ended 31 July

2021 2021
Group College
E'D0D £'000
135 139
117 117
430 450
it 686
20 20
706 706

Year ended 31 July

2020 2020
Group College
£'000 E'000
333 333

4 4

137 137

373 373
B4T BAT

- 108 198
1,045 1,045

Year ended 31 July

Yoar ended 31 July

Restated
2021 2021 2020 2020
Group  College Group College
£1000 £'000 £'000 £°000
1,052 1.062 126 126
81 ?'E!I__ 103 i
1,143 1,122 229 190

Year ended 31 July

Year ended 31 July

Restated
2021 2021 2020 2020
Group  College Group  College
E'000 £'Don £"000 £'000
141 141 258 258
- - B0 LEH]
sa7 547 663 BE3
a10 B0 612 133
388 £21 715 ¥i8
2,036 1,869 2,308 1,892
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G Investment income
Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July

2021 2021 2020 2020
Group  College Group College
E 000 E"000 Ef00D £'000
Cither investment incomea - - 1 1
7 Denations - College only
Year ended Year ended
3 July 2021 31 July 2020
E"000 000
Unrastncted donations 38 24
Tatal 3B 24

8 Staff costs - Group and College

The average number of persons (including key management personnel) employed by the College during the yea
describad as ful-ime equivalents, was.

Year ended Year ended

31 July 2021 31 July 2020

Mo. Mo,

Teaching siaff B2 B4

Non-teaching staff 113 156

175 210

2024 2020

Staff costs for the above persons £'000 E°000

Wages and salaries 4,368 4651

Social security costs 319 337
Dther pension costs 1,443 1,351

Payroll sub total 6,130 6,338

Contracted out staffing services 40 a0

6,170 6,369

Restructuring costs - contractual 135 1
6305 8370

The corporation does nat have any salary sacrifice arrangements in place.
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Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and contrelling the activities of the College and are represented by the College Senior Management
Team which comprises the Principal, Depuly Principal, Assistant Principal and Finance Directar. Staff
costs include compensation paid to key management persannel for loss of office

Emaluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other
higher paid staff

2021 2020
M. Ho.
The number of key management personnel including the Accounting Officer was: 3 3

The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual emoluments, excluding pension
confributions and employers national insurance but including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was:

Senior post-  Other staff

holders
2021 2020 2021 2020
Na. MNo. Mo. Mo,
EG0,001 to £65,000 p.a. - 1 . s
£65,001 to £70,000 p.a. . - . ~
£70,001 to £75,000 p.a. = " . .
£80,001 o £85,000 p.a. 2 1 5 =
£100,001 to £105,000 p.a. 1 1 - i
3 3 - .
F.ey management personnel compensation |s made up as fallows:
2021 2020
E'D00 £'000
Basic salary 04 274
Pension contributions 32 50
Taotal key management personnel compansation 236 J24

The above compensation includes amounts paid to the Principal and Chief Executive wha is the accounting
officer and who is also the highest pad member of staff. Their pay and remuneration is as follows:

2021 2020

£'000 E'000

Basic salary 101 101
Pensian confnbutions 10 23
1141 124

The governing body adopled AoC's Senior Staff Remuneration Code in July 2019 and assess pay in line
with its principlas.
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The remuneration package of key management staff, including the Principal and Chief Executive, |5
subject to annual review by the Governance Remuneration & Search Committee of the gaverning body
who undertake an annual review of performance against the college's overall objectives using both
qualitative and quantitative measures of performance.

Relatienship of Principal/Chief Execulive pay and remuneration expressed as a multiple

2021 2020

£°000 £'000
Principal's basic salary as a multiple of the median of all staff L 5.6
Principal and CEQ's total remuneration as a multiple of the median of all staff 5.0 6.1

9a Other operating expenses

2021 2021 2020 2020
Group College Group College
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Teaching cosis G62 662 704 704
Man-teaching cosls 2333 2,169 2,295 2,149
Premises costs ~ 798 708 669 689
Total 3,783 3,630 3,688 3,542
Other operating expenses include: 2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Auditors’ remuneration:
Financial statements audil® 53 23
Internal audit™® 17 B
Other services provided by the external auditors 7 14
Hire of assets under operaling leasos 121 161
*includes £24k in respect of the college (2020 £E20k)
** includas E17K in respect of the college (2020 £8K)
2021 2020
b Access and Participation Plan £'000 E'000
Access Investmant 7 7
Financial Suppaort 16 3
Disability Support - 6
Research and Evaluation o 1
26 81
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10 Interest payable - Group and College

201 2020

E'000 E'000
On bank loans, overdralts and other loans: 54 T3
On finance leases 1 2
Met interest on defined pension lability {note 24) 159 138
Total '

24 3

11 Taxation

The members do not believe that the College was lable for any corporation tax arising out of its activities
during either year.

12 Tangible fixed assels (Group and College)

Land and Buildings Agsets in the
Freehold Long Equipment  course of TOTAL
leasehold construction
E'000 E£'000 E£'000 E°D00 £'000
Cost or valuation
A1 August 2020 20,622 130 4,476 146 25,374
Additions . 1 - 306 296 _ Ed3
At 31 July 2021 20,663 130 4,782 442 26,017
Depreciation
Al 1 August 2020 5,710 72 3,761 - 9,543
Charge for the year 412 1 242 - 655
At 31 July 2021 6,122 73 4,003 - 10,198
Met book value at 31 July 2021 14,541 &7 778 442 15,819
Met book value at 31 July 2020 14,912 58 715 146 15,831
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Included in assets in the total for assets in the course of construction are the two capital projects -
Liniversity Centre and the Ground Source Heat Pump, as well as software development.

Inherited land and buildings were valued for the purpose of the 1994 financial statements at open
market value in their existing use by a firm of independent chartered surveyors, Symonds and Sampson
in August 1992, Other tangible fixed assets inherited from the Local Education Authority as at 1 April

1583 have been valued by the Corporation on a depreciated cost basis,

Freehold land and buildings with a net book value of £4,053,908 have been funded by exchequer fund
sources. Should these assels be sold, the College may be liable, under tha terms of the Financial
Memorandum with the Education and Skills Funding Agency to surrender the proceeds.

12  Intangible fixed assets {Group and College)

Software  Assels in the Total
course of
construction
E'000 E"0D0 £'000
Cost or valuation
A1 August 2020 285 107 382
Reclassifications 107 {107} -
At 31 July 2021 392 - 382
Depreciation
At 1 Aungust 2020 244 244
Charge for the year 7 T
At 31 July 2021 251 - 251
Met book value at 31 July 2021 141 - 141
Met book value at 31 July 2020 41 107 148

13 Investments

The College has an investment of £1 (2020: £1) in its wholly owned subsidiary company Kingston

Maurward Enterprises Limited,

14  Stocks
Group College Group College
2021 2021 2020 2020
E'000 E'000 E'00D E'000
Farm stocks including craps and livestock 475 475 330 330
Other stocks 27 15 44 33
Total
502 450 374 363
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15  Trade and other receivables

Group College Group College

2021 2021 2020 2020

£"000 £'000 £'000 £°000

Trade receivables a1 91 71 i)
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - 133 . 63
Prepayments and accrued income 158 158 211 201
Other taxation and social security - - 267 267
Cther deblors 362 362 119 118
Total 612 743 [ 718

16  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Grotp College Group College
2021 2021 2020 2020
E£'000 E£'000 £°000 £'000
Bank knans and owverdrafts 264 264 353 353
Obligations under finance leases G B 7 7
Payments recaived in advance 105 a2 283 181
Trade payables 167 163 337 321
Amounts owed o Subsidiary undertaking - 158 - 33
Dt taxation and social security 365 JG5 281 261
Accruals and deferred income 1,464 1,039 a13 308
Chter loans G2 G2 63 63
Deferred income - government capital grants 195 185 221 221
Total
2,628 2,705 1,838 1,748
17 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
Group College Group College
2021 2021 2020 2020
E'000 £'000 E£"000 E'000
Bank loans 2,180 2,180 1,233 1,233
Obligations under finance leases h 31 aF a7
Other loans b4 04 141 141
Deferred income - government capital grants - T - 1 7,240 7,240
Total 9,842 9,842 8,651 8,651
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18 Maturity of debt
(a) Bank loans and overdrafts

Bank loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows:

Group College Group College

2021 2021 2020 2020

£°000 £'000 £°000 E'000

In one year of less 415 415 353 353

Between one and two years 515 515 126 126

Betwean two and five years 1,454 1,454 588 oa8

In five years of mong 216 216 520 520
Total

2,600 2,600 1,587 1,587

The College had the following loans at tha balance sheet date:

Matwest E600K (July 2017 to Dec 2030) rate 2.25% above the base rate; Natwest CBILs £1.2m (Nav
2021 to Dec 2026) rate 3 96% above the base rate; Barclays £1.649m (0cl 2017 to Oct 2032) fixed rate
5.5%: Dorset Local Enterprise Parinership E250K (Mov 2018 to Oct 2023) rate 0.75% above EU

reference rate, The Natwest loan had a supplementary amendment (the original agreement being for

FR50K).

Thera wers covenants on the Matwest £600k loan and the Barclays loan. The College breached

covenants on bath these loans at year end 31 July 2021,

In September 2022 the College entered into an agreement with Matwest to consolidate all its leans other
than the LEP loan. The new £2.4m loan is repayable over a period of 20 year. The agreement was

fimaksad in September 2022,

(b}  Finance leases

The net finance lease abligations o which the institution is committed are:

Group College Group College
20 2021 2020 2020
£000 £°000 £°000 £°000
In one year or less g ) ¥ T
Between one and two years ) 8 - -
Between two and five years 19 19 26 26
In five years or more - L 11
Total
a7 a7 44 a4
Finance lease obligations are secured on the assets to which they relate.
19 GCash and cash equivalents At 1 August Cash At 3
2020 flows Juily 2021
£°000 £'000 £°000
Cash and cash equivalants {102} 1,111 1,009
Total (102) 1,411 1,009
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20 Capital commitments Group and Collage
2021 2020
E'000 £°000
Commitments contracted at 31 July 5,306 800

The commitments are with regard fo two capital projects which are both fully grant funded. The projects
are the construction of a University Centre and Rural Hub {funded by Dorset LEP) and the installation of
a Ground Source Heat Pump funded by Salix. The Ground Source Heal Pump project completed in July
2022 with the University Cantre project completing in August 2022

21 Lease Obligations

At 31 July the College had minimum lease payments under non-canceltable operating leases as follows:

Group and College

2021 2020
£°000 £'000
Future minimum lease payments due
Other
Mat later tham ome yaar 191 168
Between two and five years 65 212
In five yaars ar maore - - =
Total lease payments due 256 380

Marne of the oparating leases above related to fand and buildings,

22 Contingencies

The College does not have any contingent liabilities o repart

23  Ewvents after the reporting period

In September 2022 the college entered into an agreement with Matwest lo consolidate all loans
with the exceplion of the Dorset Local Enterprise Partnership loan. The new £2.4m loan is
repayable over a period of twenty years, with no capital repayments in the first twelve months. The
agreamant was signed in September 2022
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24 Defined benefit obligations

The College’s employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans: the Teachers’
Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff and the Dorset Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff. Both are multi-employer defined-
benefit plans.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified acluaries.
The latest formal actuarial valuation of the TPS was as at 31 March 2019 and of the LGPS 31
barch 2018,

Total pension cost for the year 2021 2020
E00D E£000

Teachers' Pension Scheme: contributions paid 358 300

Local Government Pension Scheme:

Contributions paid 344 380

FRS 102 (28) charge 853 610

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income = 1287 1,000

Enhanced pension charge o Statement of = -
Comprehensive Income

Total Pension Cost for Year within staff costs 1,655 1,390

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme,
governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, These regulations apply o
teachers in schools, colleges and other educational establishments. Membership is automatic for
teachers and lecturers at efigible instifutions. Teachers and leclurers are able to opt out of the TPS,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribule on a ‘pay as you go' basis — these
cantributions, along with those made by employers, are credited 1o the Exchequer under
arrangements governed by the above Act. Retirernent and other pension banefits are paid by public
funds provided by Parliamant.

Undear the definiions et out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The
college is unable to identify its share of the underlying assels and liabilities of the plan.

Accordingly, the college has taken advantage of the exemplion in FRS 102 and has accounted for
its eontributions to the scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The college has set out
above the information available on the plan and the implications for the college in terms of the
anticipated contribution rates. The valuation of the TPS is carried out in line with regulations made
under the Public Service Pansion Act 2013, Valuations credit the teachers’ pension account with a
real rate of retumn assuming funds are invested in notional investmants thal produce that real rate of
refurn.
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The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as al 31 March 2019, The valuation report
was published by the Department for Education {the Depariment) in April 2018, The valuation

reported total scheme Babiliies (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of fulure
benefils) for service to the effective date of £218 billion, and notional assets (estimated future
contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £192 bilfion giving
a notional past service deficit of £22 billion,

As a result of the valuation, new employer confribution rates were set al 23.68% of pensionable pay
from September 2019 enwards (compared to 16.48% during 2018/9). DIE has agreed to pay a
leacher pansion employer contribution grant to cover the additional costs during the 2020-21
academic year. A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on
the Teachers' Pension Scheme wehsite,

The pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £358k (2020: £390k)

Local Government Penslon Schoeme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds administered by
Dorset Local Authority. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 July 2021 were £474k, of
which employer's contributions totalled £344k and employees’ contributions totalled £130k. The
agreed conlribution rates for fulure years are 17.3% for the college and range from 5.5% to 12.5%
for amployees, depending on salary according to a national scale,

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valeation of the fund at 31 March 2019
updated to 31 July 2021 by Bamett Waddingham.

ALIT July At 31 July 2020

2021
Rate of increase in salaries 1.50% 1.50%
Future pensions increases 2.85% 2.20%
Digcount rate for scheme labilities 1.60% 1. 400
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.85% 2.:20%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50% HOEG

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements
in mortality rates. The assumed life expactations on refirement age 65 are:;

AL July  AtH

2021 July
2020
Years Years
Retiring today
Males 2310 23.30
Females 24.60 24.80
Relinng in 20 yvears
Males 2440 2470
Females 2810 2820
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The college's share of the assets in the plan at the balance sheet date and the expected rates of return were:

Long-term
rate of return
expected at
31 July 2020

0.3%
4.33%

3465
0.17%

-3.0%

Long-term Fair Value at
rate of return 3 July 2021
cxpected at E'0DD
3 July 2021
Equil:g!f instruments 9.3% 8652
Debl instruments 4.33% 3842
Property 3.46% 3176
Cash 0 17% 291
Total fair value of plan asscls 15,891
Weighted average expected 17,356
long term rate of return
Actual return on plan assets 2,324

Fair Value
at 31 July
2020
E'o0n

6,855
3480
2822

138

13,205

The amecunt included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan and enhanced

pensions benefits is as follows:

Fair valua of plan assels
Fresent value of plan liabililxes

2021

£°000
15,891
(27,880)

MNet pensions (labilityasset

(12,009)

(427)

2020

£'000
13,305
(24,806

{11,501)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan are as follows:

2021 2020
£°000 £°000
Amounts included in staff costs
Current service cost 1,194 51
Past service cost o 0
Total 1,285 951
Amounts included in investment Income
Met interest income 158 138
159 138
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Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Refurn on pension plan assets
Experience gainsi{losses) arising on defined benefit obligations
Changes in assumplions underlying the present value of plan liabilities

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Movement in net defined benefit (liability)asset during year

Met defined benefit (liabilityasset in scheme at 1 August
Movement in year:
Current service cost
Employar contribulions
Past service cost
Administralion expenses
Met interest on the defined (liabilitylasset
Actuarial gain or loss
Net defined benefit (liability) at 31 July

Asset and Liability Reconciliation

Changes In the present value of defined benefit obligations
Defined benofit obligations at start of pericd

Current service cost

Interest cost

Contributions by Scheme participants

Experience gains and losses on defined benefit obligations
Changes in financial assumptions

Eslimated benefits paid

Past Service cost

Change in demographic assumptions

Defined benefit obligations at end of period
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2024 2020
£°000 £'000
2 136 (T14)
402 (533)
{2,114} [Z.710)
514 [3,957)
Z021 2020
E"000 £'000
{11,501) {6,796}
(1,184) {991)
344 290
(91) 0
{12) {9
(158) {138)
514 (3,957)
T (12,089) C11,501)
2024 2020
E 000 E"000
24 606 20,340
1,154 &1
347 425
130 143
(402 533
2413 3,096
(200 (317)
[2949) (405)
27,950 24 806
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Changes In fair value of plan assets

Falr value of plan assets at start of period 13,308 15,644
Interest on plan assets 188 287
Return on plan assets 2,136 (714}
Other actuarial losses (19}
Administration expenses (12) (9
Employer contributions 344 390
Contributions by Scheme participants 130 143
Estimated benefils paid (200) (317)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 15,891 13,305

These accounts show a past service cost of £230 million in respect of the McCloud / Sergeant

judgermeant which ruled that the ransitional protection for some members of public service schames

implemented when they were reformed constituted age discrimination. This provision is just under 2% af

the total scheme Bability as at 31 July 2020. The calculation of adjustment o past service costs, E7

billion, arising from the cutcome of the Court of Appeal judgment is based on a number of key
assumplions including:

the form of remedy adopted

how the remedy will be implemented

which members will be affected by the remedy

the earning assumplicns

the withdrawal assumgption

The other financial and demographic assumptions adopted to calculate the past service cost are the
same as those used to calculate the overall scheme liability, Adopting differant assumptions, or making
other adjustments to reflect behavioural changes stemming from the judgment, would be expected fo
change the disclosed past service cost Similarly, allowing for variations in individual members’ future
service or salary progression is expected to produce higher cosls. The past service cost is particularly

sensitive ta the differance betwaen assumed long term general pay growth and the CPL

If the long term salary growth assumptions were 0.5% pa lower, then the past service cost disclosed

hera would be expected to reduce by 50% and conversely a 0.5% pa increase wouwld increase the
estimated cost by 65%

25 Amounts disbursed as agent Learner support funds (College 2021
cnly) E'000
16-18 bursary grants 264
Disbursed 1o shedants {78}
Administration cosis {6)

Balanca unspent as at 31 July, ncluded in creditors 180

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the college only

2020
£'000
158
(137)
(3

18

acls as a paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related disbursements are therafore

excluded fram the Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Due to the nature of the college's operations and the composition of the board of govennons
being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, if is inavitable that transactions
will take place with organisations in which a member of the board of governors may have an
interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s kength and in
atcordance with the college's financial regulatsans and normal procurement procedures.

The tolal expensaes paid to or on bahalf of the Governors during the year was £0; (2020: £789 4
governars), This reprasents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of pocket expenses
imcurred in attending Governor meetings and charity events in their official capacity. No
Govarmnor has received any remunaration or waived payments from the college or iis subsidiaras

Related party transactions
during the year (2020: None}.

Mature of

Nama Interest

Synergy Farm Health Lid Govemnar is
a Director

Synergy Farm Health Lid CSOVETTAOT IS
the Chair

Daorset Studie Sehool (GOvEinons
acts as
Membars of
the schoal

Darsel Studie Schoal The
Principal of
DESiEa
Governar

Dorset Local Enterprise

Partnership CIC iy
is & member

Landex Land Basad Principal, as

Caolleges a Govennor,
is & member

Prior year adjustment

Detail

Expenditura relation to
veterinary services
Expenditure relation to
velerinary semvices

Incame relatas o Sericn
Level Agreements

Income refates to Service
Level Agreemenis
Expenditure relates o
Ioan and interest
repayments

Expenditure relates io
staff training and
subscription fees

{Income) /
Expenditure

(Debtor) .
Creditor

251 (12)

26112}

(433)

(433}

A prior vear adjustment has been made to corectly include a separate "Other grants and
contracts income”™ nobe showing income of £220k for the Group and £190K for the College for the
vear ended 31 July 2020. This had previously bean included within the "Other income” nate.
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